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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
  Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
P.O. Box 220  
Michigamme, Michigan 49861 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Township of Michigamme, Michigan (the Township), as of and for the year ended March 31, 
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Township’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 



Board of Trustees of the 
Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township, as of March 31, 
2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplemental information, as listed in the 
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements. The other supplemental 
information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 
The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 29, 2021, on our consideration of the Township’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Township’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

 
September 29, 2021 
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Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
 
Our discussion and analysis of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan’s (the Township) 
financial performance provides an overview of the Township’s financial activities for the year 
ended March 31, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which begin 
as listed in the table of contents. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Net Position for the Township as a whole increased by $1,163,523 as a result of this 
year’s operations.  Net position of our business-type activities increased by $12,562, or 1 
percent, and net position of our governmental activities increased by $1,150,961, or 17 
percent. 
 

• During the year, the Township had expenses for governmental activities that were 
$737,084 which is $1,150,961 less than the $1,888,045 generated in program and 
general revenue sources. 
 

• During the year, the Township had expenses for business-type activities that were 
$86,894 which is $12,562 less than the $99,456 generated in program and general 
revenue sources. 
 

• The General Fund reported a fund balance of $1,995,597. The net increase in fund 
balance of $728,377 was $446,955 more than the forecasted change of $281,422. 

 
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities as listed in the table of contents provide information about the 
activities of the Township as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Township’s 
finances. Fund financial statements start as listed in the table of contents. For governmental 
activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as 
what remains for the future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Township’s 
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about 
the Township’s most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information 
about activities for which the Township acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those 
outside the government. 
 
Reporting the Township as a Whole 
 
Our analysis of the Township as a whole begins on the pages below. One of the most important 
questions asked about the Township’s finances is “Is the Township as a whole better off or 
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities report information about the Township as a whole and about its activities in a way 
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current 
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or 
paid.  
 
 

 



 

8 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued) 
 
These two statements report the Township’s net position and changes in them. You can think of 
the Township’s net position - the difference between assets/deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities/deferred inflows of resources - as one way to measure the financial health, or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the net position is one indicator of whether its 
financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
 
You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the 
Township’s patron base and the condition of the Township’s capital assets, to assess the overall 
financial health of the Township. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Township into 
two kinds of activities: 
 

• Governmental Activities – Most of the Township’s basic services are reported here, 
including the legislative, elections, public safety, public works, recreation and culture, 
community and economic development and general services and administration.  
Property taxes, charges for services and state sources fund most of these activities. 

 
• Business-Type Activities – The Township charges a fee to customers to help it cover all 

or most of the cost of certain services it provides.  The Township’s Sewer System 
activities are reported here. 

 
Reporting the Township’s Most Significant Funds 
 
Our analysis of the Township’s major funds begins as listed in the table of contents.  The fund 
financial statements begin as listed in the table of contents and provide detailed information on 
the most significant funds – not the Township as a whole. Some funds are required to be 
established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Township Board establishes 
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it 
is meeting legal responsibilities for using taxes, grants, and other money. The Township’s two 
kinds of funds - governmental and proprietary - use different accounting approaches. 
 

• Governmental Funds – Most of the Township’s basic services are reported in 
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and 
the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported 
using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash 
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted into cash. The governmental 
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Township’s general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund 
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources 
that can be spent in the near future to finance the Township’s programs. We describe 
the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a 
reconciliation which follows the fund financial statements. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued) 
 

• Proprietary Funds – When the Township charges customers for the services it provides 
– whether to outside customers or to other units of the Township – these services are 
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way 
that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities.  In fact, the Township’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) 
are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide 
statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for 
proprietary funds. 

 
The Township as Trustee 
 
The Township is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that – because of a trust arrangement – can 
be used only for the trust beneficiaries.  All of the Township’s fiduciary activities are reported in 
separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position (as listed in the table of contents).  We exclude 
these activities from the Township’s other financial statements because the Township cannot 
use these assets to finance its operations.  
 
The Township is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for 
their intended purposes.  
 
The Township as a Whole 
 
Table 1 provides a summary of the Township’s net position as of March 31, 2021 compared to 
2019.  
 

Table 1 
Net Position 

 2021  2019 
 

Governmental 
Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  
Total Primary 
Government  

Governmental 
Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  
Total Primary 
Government 

            
Current and other assets $6,705,044  ($104,836)  $6,600,208  $5,207,653  ($55,045)  $5,152,608 
Capital assets, net 1,847,693  1,634,996  3,482,689  1,832,751  1,615,942  3,448,693 

Total Assets 8,552,737  1,530,160  10,082,897  7,040,404  1,560,897  8,601,301 
            
Deferred outflow of  
  resources -  -  -  -  -  - 
            
Current liabilities 34,461  4,558  39,019  104,322  10,367  114,689 
Non-current liabilities 575,000  179,000  754,000  635,000  187,000  822,000 

Total Liabilities 609,461  183,558  793,019  739,322  197,367  936,689 
            
Deferred inflow of  
  resources -  -    -  -  - 
            
Net Position:            
  Net investment in  
    capital assets 1,272,693  1,210,447  2,483,140  1,142,751  1,150,934  2,293,685 
  Restricted 4,920,535  57,340  4,977,875  3,965,762  54,498  4,020,260 
  Unrestricted 1,750,048  78,815  1,828,863  1,192,569  158,098  1,350,667 

Total Net Position $7,943,276  $1,346,602  $9,289,878  $6,301,082  $1,363,530  $7,664,612 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued) 
 
Net position of the Township’s governmental activities stood at $7,943,276. Unrestricted net 
position—the part of net position that could be used to finance day-to-day activities without 
constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements 
stood at $1,750,048.  
 
The $1,750,048 in unrestricted net position of governmental activities represents the 
accumulated results of all past years’ operations.  The operating results of the General Fund will 
have a significant impact on the change in unrestricted net position from year to year. 
 
The net position of our business-type activities stood at $1,346,602. The Township can 
generally only use this net position to finance continuing operations of the Sewer System. 
 
The results of this year’s operations for the Township as a whole are reported in the Statement 
of Activities (see Table 2), which shows the changes in net position for fiscal years 2021 and 
2019. 

Table 2 
Change in Net Position 

 2021  2019 
 

Governmental 
Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  
Total Primary 
Government  

Governmental 
Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  
Total Primary 
Government 

Revenues:            
 Program Revenues:            
    Charges for services $152,162  $99,069  $251,231  $162,577  $95,427  $258,004 
   Operating grants and contributions 3,376  -  3,376  -  -  - 
    Capital grants and contributions -  -  -  -  -  - 
 General Revenues:            
    Property taxes 1,440,986  -  1,440,986  1,364,601  -  1,364,601 
    State Sources 191,561  -  191,561  185,058  -  185,058 
    Interest 65,380  387  65,767  63,161  629  63,790 
    Miscellaneous 34,580  -  34,580  53,085  -  53,085 

Total Revenues 1,888,045  99,456  1,987,501  1,828,482  96,056  1,924,538 
            Program Expenses:            
  Legislative 152,747  -  152,747  128,389  -  128,389 
  General government 128,852  -  128,852  141,156  -  141,156 
  Public safety 42,754  -  42,754  26,058  -  26,058 
  Public works 245,793  -  245,793  409,061  -  409,061 
  Health and welfare 22,560  -  22,560  19,274  -  19,274 
  Community and economic development 11,203  -  11,203  3,530  -  3,530 
  Recreation and culture 39,701  -  39,701  61,052  -  61,052 
  Capital outlay -  -  -  -  -  - 
  Debt service -  -  -  24,540  -  24,540 
  Unallocated depreciation 93,474  -  93,474  89,958  -  89,958 
  Sewer system -  86,894  86,894  -  140,518  140,518 

Total Expenses 737,084  86,894  823,978  903,018  140,518  1,043,536 
            Excess (deficiency)  

before transfers 1,150,961  12,562  1,163,523  925,464  (44,462)  881,002 
Transfers -  -  -  -  -  - 

Increase (decrease)  
in net position 1,150,961  12,562  1,163,523  925,464  (44,462)  881,002 

Net position, beginning 6,792,315  1,334,040  8,126,355  5,375,618  1,407,992  6,783,610 
Net Position, Ending $7,943,276  $1,346,602  $9,289,878  $6,301,082  $1,363,530  $7,664,612 

 
The Township’s total revenues were $1,987,501. The total cost of all programs and services 
was $823,978, leaving an increase in net position of $1,163,523.  Our analysis below separately 
considers the operations of governmental and business-type activities:  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued) 
 
Governmental Activities 
The net position of the Township’s governmental activities increased $1,150,961 for the year 
ended March 31, 2021. 
 
This was from governmental fund net income of $1,175,535 (described under governmental 
funds), reclassifying $8,900 of capital outlays to capital assets, recording depreciation expense 
of ($93,474), and recording debt principal payments of $60,000. 
 
Business-type Activities 
During the year ended March 31, 2021, the net position of the Township’s business-type 
activities increased by $12,562. 
 
This was from operating revenues in the Sewer System Fund exceeding operating expenses in the 
current year by $22,438, investment income of $387 and interest expense of ($10,263). 
 
THE TOWNSHIP’S FUNDS 
 
As the Township completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet 
as listed in the table of contents) reported a combined fund balance of $6,670,583, an increase 
of $1,175,535 from the beginning of the year.  
 
The General Fund increased by $728,377. This increase was due to actual property tax revenue 
and state source revenue being greater than anticipated.  
 
The Road Fund increased by $107,857 due to no major road projects in the current year.  
 
The Fire Fund increased by $242,975 due to very little capital outlay in the current year. 
 
The Building Fund increased by $123,906 due very little capital outlay in the current year. 
 
The Garbage Fund decreased by $25,855 due to revenue being less than anticipated.  
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Over the course of the year, the Township Board did revise the budget.  
 
With these adjustments, actual charges to expenditures were $166,618 less than the final 
amended budget. Additionally, revenues were $282,428 more than the final budget projection. 
Lastly, actual other financing sources (uses) were $2,091 less than the final budget projection.  
 
The revenue and expenditures differences between final budget and the actual are made up of: 
 
Revenues were $282,428 more than budgeted for the following reasons: anticipated property 
taxes and state sources were greater than the budgeted amounts. 

 
Expenditures were $166,618 less than budgeted for the following reasons:  under expending in 
Legislative of $76,519, under expending in General Services and Administration of $37,894, 
under expending in Recreation and Culture of $35,210, coupled with minor variances 
throughout other departments. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued) 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At the end of fiscal years 2021 and 2019, the Township had $3,482,689 and $3,448,693 
invested in a variety of capital assets including land and improvements, buildings and 
improvements, and other equipment. (See table 3 below) 
 

Table 3 
Capital Assets at Year-End (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 

 2021  2019 
 

Governmental 
Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  

Total 
 Primary 

Government  
Governmental 

Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  

Total 
 Primary 

Government 
Land $647,500  $58,724  $706,224  $647,500  $58,724  $706,224 
Construction in progress -  -  -  12,000  -  12,000 
Buildings and improvements 724,920  664,408  1,389,328  586,288  -  586,288 
Land improvements 247,251  -  247,251  278,768  -  278,768 
Equipment and vehicles 228,022  44,183  272,205  308,195  -  308,195 
Sewer system -  867,681  867,681  -  1,557,218  1,557,218 

Total $1,847,693  $1,634,996  $3,482,689  $1,832,751  $1,615,942  $3,448,693 
 
During the current year, the Township replaced park stairs and replaced a sewer main.  There 
were no disposals in the current year. The Township recorded depreciation expense of $93,474 
for governmental activities and $55,487 for business-type activities. More information on capital 
assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Debt 
 
At the end of fiscal year 2021 and 2019, the Township had $754,000 and $885,000 in bonds and 
notes outstanding as depicted in Table 4 below. 
 

Table 4 
Outstanding Debt at Year-End 

 2021  2019 
 

Governmental 
Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  

Total 
Primary 

Government  
Governmental 

Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities  

Total 
Primary 

Government 
Bonds $575,000  $179,000  $754,000  $690,000  $195,000  $885,000 
Notes -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total $575,000  $179,000  $754,000  $690,000  $195,000  $885,000 
 
The Township did not issue any new debt in the current year and recorded principle payments 
of $63,000. More information on debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued) 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS 
 
In preparing the Township’s budget for the year ending March 31, 2022, the Township 
considered the following issues: 
 

• The fiscal 2022 budget was based on 2021 estimated year end balances and kept fairly 
stable for all activity. 

 
CONTACTING THE TOWNSHIP’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors 
and creditors with a general overview of the Township’s finances and to show the Township’s 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the Township of Michigamme, P.O. Box 220, 
Michigamme, Michigan  49861. 
 



TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

March 31, 2021

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and equivalents 2,691,407$        79,999$             2,771,406$        
Investments 3,688,348          -                        3,688,348          
Receivables, net 78,978               16,114               95,092               
Primary government balances 246,311             (246,311)           -                        
Prepaid Expense -                        -                        -                        

Non-current assets:
Restricted - cash and equivalents -                        45,362               45,362               
Capital assets:

Land 647,500             58,724               706,224             
Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,200,193          1,576,272          2,776,465          

Total Capital Assets 1,847,693          1,634,996          3,482,689          

TOTAL ASSETS 8,552,737          1,530,160          10,082,897        

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES -                        -                        -                        

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 16,093               313                    16,406               
Accrued liabilities 18,368               -                        18,368               
Accrued interest -                        4,245                 4,245                 

Non-current Liabilities:
Portion due or payable within one year

Bonds payable 60,000               3,000                 63,000               
Note Payable -                        -                        -                        

Portion due or payable after one year
Bonds payable 515,000             176,000             691,000             
Notes payable -                        -                        -                        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 609,461             183,558             793,019             

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES -                        -                        -                        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,272,693          1,210,447          2,483,140          
Restricted for:

Debt Service 4,920,535          57,340               4,977,875          
Unrestricted 1,750,048          78,815               1,828,863          

TOTAL NET POSITION 7,943,276$        1,346,602$        9,289,878$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Operating Capital Business-

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type

Function / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

Legislative 152,747$          -$                      -$                      -$                      (152,747)$         -$                      (152,747)$         

General government 128,852            43,168              -                        -                        (85,684)             -                        (85,684)             

Public safety 42,754              9,128                -                        -                        (33,626)             -                        (33,626)             

Public works 245,793            89,106              3,376                -                        (153,311)           -                        (153,311)           

Health and welfare 22,560              10,760              -                        -                        (11,800)             -                        (11,800)             

Community and economic development 11,203              -                        -                        -                        (11,203)             -                        (11,203)             

Recreation and culture 39,701              -                        -                        -                        (39,701)             -                        (39,701)             

Capital outlay -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Debt service -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Unallocated depreciation 93,474              -                        -                        -                        (93,474)             -                        (93,474)             

Total Governmental Activities 737,084            152,162            3,376                -                        (581,546)           -                        (581,546)           

Business Type Activities:

Sewer Fund 86,894              99,069              -                        -                        -                        12,175              12,175              

Total Business Type Activities 86,894              99,069              -                        -                        -                        12,175              12,175              

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 823,978$          251,231$          3,376$              -$                      (581,546)           12,175              (569,371)           

General Revenues:

Property taxes 1,440,986         -                        1,440,986         

Unrestricted state sources 191,561            -                        191,561            

Interest and investment earnings 65,380              387                   65,767              

Miscellaneous 34,580              -                        34,580              

Transfers -                        -                        -                        

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 1,732,507         387                   1,732,894         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,150,961         12,562              1,163,523         

Net position, beginning of year 6,792,315         1,334,040         8,126,355         

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 7,943,276$       1,346,602$       9,289,878$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Non-Major Total 
General Road Fire Building Garbage Park DDA Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS

Cash and equivalents 1,884,883$     116,345$        280,864$        175,501$        132,818$        71,404$          29,592$          2,691,407$     
Investments 565,038          549,264          1,077,551       483,668          869,815          143,012          -                      3,688,348       
Receivables 35,617            3,030              11,556            3,021              750                 -                      16,921            70,895            
Due from other governments 8,083              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      8,083              
Due from other funds 15,887            149,596          312,868          138,013          95,000            38,000            -                      749,364          
Advance to other funds 245,549          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      245,549          
Prepaid expense -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL ASSETS 2,755,057       818,235          1,682,839       800,203          1,098,383       252,416          46,513            7,453,646       

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 2,755,057$     818,235$        1,682,839$     800,203$        1,098,383$     252,416$        46,513$          7,453,646$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 7,615$            -$                    466$               25$                 2,872$            5,022$            93$                 16,093$          
Accrued payroll and related 18,368            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      18,368            
Due to other funds 733,477          300                 8,183              3,621              1,004              2,017              -                      748,602          
Advance from other funds -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 759,460          300                 8,649              3,646              3,876              7,039              93                   783,063          

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

FUND BALANCE
Non-spendable 245,549          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      245,549          
Restricted -                      817,935          1,674,190       796,557          1,094,507       245,377          46,420            4,674,986       
Committed -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Assigned 51,703            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      51,703            
Unassigned 1,698,345       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,698,345       

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,995,597       817,935          1,674,190       796,557          1,094,507       245,377          46,420            6,670,583       

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 2,755,057$     818,235$        1,682,839$     800,203$        1,098,383$     252,416$        46,513$          7,453,646$     

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

March 31, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds 6,670,583$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 

financial resources and therefore are not reported in

the funds

Cost of Capital Assets 4,100,557$     

Accumulated Deprecation of Assets (2,252,864)      1,847,693       

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not 

due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest -                      

Current portion of notes payable 60,000            

Notes payable 515,000          (575,000)         

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 7,943,276$     

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

March 31, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Non-Major Total
General Road Fire Building Garbage Park DDA Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:

Taxes 756,657$        195,033$        270,895$        168,741$        17,998$          14,741$          16,921$          1,440,986$     
Licenses and Permits -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Federal Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
State Sources 191,561          3,376              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      194,937          
Local Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Charges for Services 43,168            -                      19,888            -                      89,106            -                      -                      152,162          
Fines and Forfeits -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Interest and Rents 18,283            7,379              16,639            7,081              13,493            2,497              8                     65,380            
Other Revenue 24,569            -                      867                 3,059              4,319              1,170              596                 34,580            

TOTAL REVENUES 1,034,238       205,788          308,289          178,881          124,916          18,408            17,525            1,888,045       

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative 152,747          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      152,747          
General Government 73,877            -                      -                      54,975            -                      -                      -                      128,852          
Public Safety -                      -                      42,754            -                      -                      -                      -                      42,754            
Public Works 57,091            97,931            -                      -                      150,771          -                      -                      305,793          
Health and Welfare -                      -                      22,560            -                      -                      -                      -                      22,560            
Community and Economic Development 6,401              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,802              11,203            
Recreation and Culture 15,745            -                      -                      -                      -                      32,856            -                      48,601            
Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Debt Service -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 305,861          97,931            65,314            54,975            150,771          32,856            4,802              712,510          

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 728,377          107,857          242,975          123,906          (25,855)           (14,448)           12,723            1,175,535       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 728,377          107,857          242,975          123,906          (25,855)           (14,448)           12,723            1,175,535       

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,267,220       710,078          1,431,215       672,651          1,120,362       259,825          33,697            5,495,048       

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,995,597$     817,935$        1,674,190$     796,557$        1,094,507$     245,377$        46,420$          6,670,583$     

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 1,175,535$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlays 8,900$            
Depreciation expense (93,474)           (84,574)           

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on 
outstanding bonds, whereas in governmental funds, an
interest expenditure is reported when due. -                      

Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds but repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position. 60,000            

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 1,150,961$     

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and equivalents 79,999$          
Accounts receivable, net 16,114            
Due from other funds -                      
Prepaid expense -                      

Non-current Assets:

Restricted - cash and equivalents 45,362            
Capital assets:

Land 58,724            
Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,576,272       

Total Capital Assets 1,634,996       

TOTAL ASSETS 1,776,471       

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES -                      

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 313                 
Accrued liabilities -                      
Due to other funds 762                 
Accrued interest payable 4,245              

Non-current Liabilities:
Portion due or payable within one year

Bonds payable 3,000              
Portion due or payable after one year

Advances from other funds 245,549          
Bonds payable 176,000          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 429,869          

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES -                      

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,210,447       
Restricted - debt service 57,340            
Unrestricted 78,815            

TOTAL NET POSITION 1,346,602$     

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

SEWER FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

March 31, 2021

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services (net) 99,069$          
Other operating revenue -                     

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 99,069            

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services 7,209              
Supplies 635                 
Other services and charges 13,300            
Depreciation 55,487            

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 76,631            

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 22,438            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income 387                 
Interest expense (10,263)          

TOTAL NON-OPERATING
 REVENUES (EXPENSES) (9,876)            

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 12,562            

Transfers in -                     
Transfers (out) -                     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 12,562            

Net position, beginning of year 1,334,040       

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 1,346,602$     

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

SEWER FUND

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from fees and charges for services 106,678$        
Cash payments to employees for services (7,209)             
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (11,183)           

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 88,286            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) interfund activity 762                 
Increase (decrease) interfund activity - advance (16,387)           
Cash payments for capital assets (122,330)         

Interest payments on bonds (8,797)             
Principal payments on bonds (3,000)             

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (149,752)         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash 23,092            
Interest income 387                 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 23,479            

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (37,987)           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 117,986          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 79,999$          

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) 22,438$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 55,487            
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 7,609              

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense 3,149              
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (397)                
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities -                      

NET ADJUSTMENTS 65,848            
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 88,286$          

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

SEWER FUND

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

March 31, 2021

Custodial
Funds

Tax
Collection

Fund

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 66,368$          

TOTAL ASSETS 66,368            

LIABILITIES:
Due to others 66,368            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 66,368            

NET POSITION:
Restricted -                     

TOTAL NET POSITION -$                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Custodial

Funds

Tax

Collection

Fund

ADDITIONS:

Property tax collections for other governments 1,726,871$         

TOTAL ADDITIONS 1,726,871           

DEDUCTIONS:

Payments of property taxes to other governments 1,726,871           

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 1,726,871           

CHANGES IN NET POSITION -                          

Net position, beginning of year -                          

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR -$                        

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

March 31, 2021 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
The financial statements of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan (the Township) have been 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for 
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements 
and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when 
applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The more significant 
of these accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the Township are described 
below. 
 
REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The Township’s financial statements present the Township (the primary government). In 
evaluating the Township as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential 
component units (traditionally separate reporting units) for which the Township may or may not 
be financially accountable and, as such, be includable within the Township’s financial 
statements.  
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Township’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the 
Township as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Township’s major funds). 
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either 
governmental or business-type. The Township’s legislative, public works, public safety, 
community and economic development, recreation and culture and general services and 
administration are classified as governmental activities.  The Township’s Sewer System is 
classified as business-type activities. 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column and are reported on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as 
well as long-term debt and obligations.  The Township’s net position is reported in three parts – 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net 
position. The Township first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 
 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
Township’s functions and business-type activities.  The functions are also supported by general 
government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, 
permits and charges, etc.)  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.  Program revenues 
must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.  Operating grants 
include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital 
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.   The net costs (by function or business-type 
activity) are normally covered by general revenue. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Township as an entity and the 
change in the Township’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.  For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activities has been removed from these statements. 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial transactions of the Township are reported in individual funds in the fund financial 
statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprises its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are 
reported by generic classification within the financial statements. 
 
The following fund types are used by the Township: 
 
Governmental Funds 
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather 
than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Township: 
 

• General Fund – General Fund is the general operating fund and, accordingly, it is used 
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

 
• Special Revenue – Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of 

specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes 
in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles 
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of 
the proprietary funds of the Township: 

 
• Enterprise Funds – Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are 

financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises – where the 
intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided 
that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, 
or other purposes. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods 
in connection with ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenue of the Sewer Fund is 
charges for services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, 
and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and 
therefore are not available to support Township programs. The agency and tax collection funds 
are custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a measurement 
focus. 
 
The Township’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type, 
custodial.  Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other 
local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations 
of the Township, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 
 
Major Funds 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or 
business-type activities  categories.  Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single 
column.  GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets/deferred 
outflow of resources, liabilities/deferred inflow of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses 
of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of 
major funds. 
 
The Township reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

• The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

• The Road Fund is used to account for the financial resources to be used for the 
expenditures related to road improvements. 

• The Fire Fund is used to account for the operations of the fire and EMS departments. 
• The Building Fund is used to account for the maintenance and construction of the town 

hall. 
• The Garbage Fund is used to account for the refuse collection system. 

 
The Township reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

• The Sewer Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses for the operation of 
a sewer system. 

 
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of 
the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
Accrual 
Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements 
and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 
All enterprise funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and 
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless 
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB 
prevails. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are 
recognized when they are incurred.  
 
Modified Accrual 
The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under the modified basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when they are both 
measurable and available.  “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recognized under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. However, debt service 
expenditures, compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when 
payment is due. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting – The Township follows these procedures in establishing 
the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
  

a. The Township Supervisor submits to the Township Board of Trustees a proposed 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following April 1. The 
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing 
them. 
 

b. Numerous opportunities exist for public comment during the budget process 
including at least two formal public hearings conducted at the Township Hall to 
obtain taxpayer comment. 
 

c. Pursuant to statute, prior to March 31 of each year the budget for the ensuing 
year is legally enacted through adoption of an Annual General Appropriations 
Act. 

 
d. The general statute governing Township budgetary activity is the State of 

Michigan Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act.  In addition to the provisions of 
the said Act and Board policy, general statements concerning the Board’s intent 
regarding the administration of each year’s budget are set out in the Annual 
General Appropriations Act. The Township Board of Trustees, through policy 
action, specifically directs the Supervisor not to authorize or participate in any 
expenditure of funds except as authorized by the Annual General Appropriations 
Act.  The Board recognized that, in addition to possible Board sanctions for willful 
disregard of this policy, State statutes provide for civil liability for violations of the 
Annual General Appropriations Act. 
 

e. The Supervisor is authorized by means of Township policy to make certain 
transfers: 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 

1. The Supervisor receives a request for a budget transfer from the head of the 
department whose budget is to be affected.  Such request must specify the 
necessity for the transfer, the account name and/or group(s) and amount to 
be affected within prescribed limitations. Transfers in excess of those 
limitations must be approved by the Board of Trustees. 
 

2. The following considerations must be reviewed in determination of transfer 
approvals: 

 
a) Are the transfers consistent with the intent of the Board of Trustees 

in adopting the annual budget? 
 

b) Will the transfer maintain the financial integrity of the Township? 
 

c) Will the transfer provide a reasonable solution to the departmental 
operating problem? 

 
Considering the above, the Supervisor will then decide whether or not the transfer 
should be made. 
 
Supplemental appropriations are submitted to and reviewed by the Supervisor and 
submitted to the Township Board of Trustees for their review and approval.  If 
approved, they are implemented by the Supervisor through a budget revision. 

 
f. The Township adopts its Annual Budget on a departmental basis. At each level 

of detail, governmental operations are summarized into expenditure account 
groups.  Funding sources are also identified and adopted at each level of detail. 
Budgetary controls exist at the most detailed level adopted by the Board of 
Trustees, i.e., department for analytical purposes. A detailed line item 
breakdown is prepared for each program. Accounting, i.e., classification control, 
resides at the line item detail level. 

 
g. Budgets for the General Funds were adopted in substance on an accrual basis 

which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.  Budgeted 
amounts as reported in the Financial Report are as originally adopted and/or 
amended by the Township Board of Trustees. 

 
Cash Equivalents and Investments – For the purposes of balance sheet classification and the 
statement of cash flows, cash and equivalents consist of demand deposits, cash in savings, 
money market accounts and short-term certificates of deposit with original maturity of three 
months or less. Investments are carried at fair value. The fair value measurements of 
investments is based on the hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles, 
which has three levels based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value. 
 
Receivables and Payables – In general, outstanding balances between funds are reported as 
“due to/from other funds.”  Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as “advances to/from other 
funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances.” 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown as net of allowance for uncollectible amounts.   
Property taxes are levied on each December 1st on the taxable valuation of property as of the 
preceding December 31st.  Taxes are considered delinquent on March 1st of the following year, 
at which time penalties and interest are assessed. 
 
Interfund Activity – Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or 
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject 
to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, 
are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs 
a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a result of the 
reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between 
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide 
financial statements. 
 
Restricted Assets – The revenue bonds of the enterprise funds require amounts to be set 
aside for construction, debt service principal and interest, operations and maintenance and a 
bond reserve.  These amounts have been classified as restricted assets. 
 
Capital Assets – Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure 
assets (e.g. streets, bridges, and sidewalks), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets 
are defined by the Township as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of five years. 
 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost 
is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their fair value on the date donated. 
Depreciation on all exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against their operations 
in government-wide statements and proprietary financial statements. Accumulated depreciation 
is reported on government-wide and proprietary statement of net position. Depreciation has 
been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated 
useful lives are as follows: 

 
Land improvements 15 years 
Building, structures and improvements 10-40 years 
Equipment 5 years 
Sewage System 20-50  years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Infrastructure 20-50 years 
 

Deferred Outflows of Resources – In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial 
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position 
that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The government does not have any items that qualify for 
reporting in this category. 
 
Long-Term Liabilities – In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund 
types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities and business-type activities or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position.  In the fund financial statements, the face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources – In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and 
governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The government does not have 
any items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 
Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting of 
certain assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures. Actual results may differ from estimated 
amounts. 
 
Property Taxes – Property taxes are levied as of December 1 of each year and are due by the 
last day of the following March. The taxes are collected by the local unit and periodically 
remitted to the third parties during the collection period. 
 
Subsequent Events – Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the 
financial statements in determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events 
that affect the financial statements. Subsequent events have been evaluated through 
September 29, 2021, which is the date of the accompanying independent auditor’s report, which 
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
NOTE B – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS: 
 
Cash Equivalents 
The following is a reconciliation of cash and investments for both the unrestricted and restricted 
assets for the primary government from the Statement of Net Position: 
 
  Governmental 

Activities  
Business-Type 

Activities  
Fiduciary 

Funds  Total 
Unrestricted:         
  Cash and equivalents  $2,691,407  $79,999  $66,368  $2,837,774 
  Investments  3,688,348  -  -  3,688,348 

Subtotal  6,379,755  79,999  66,368  6,526,155 
         
Restricted:         
  Cash and equivalents  -  45,362  -  45,362 
  Investments  -  -  -  - 

Subtotal  -  45,362  -  45,362 
Total  $6,379,755  $125,361  $66,368  $6,571,484 

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township’s deposits may 
not be returned to it.  State law does not require and the Township does not have a deposit 
policy for custodial credit risk.  The carrying amounts of the Township’s deposits with financial 
institutions were $2,883,136 and the bank balance was $2,889,558. The bank balance is 
categorized as follows: 
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NOTE B – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued): 
  

Amount insured by the FDIC   $1,171,440  
Amount uncollateralized and uninsured  1,718,118 

Total  $2,889,558 
Investments 
Investments, including derivative instruments that are not hedging derivatives, are measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net 
position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. As of March 31, 2021, the Township had the 
following investments: 
    Fair Value Measurements Using 

Investments 
 

Fair Value  
Level 1 
Inputs  

Level 2 
Inputs  

Level 3 
Inputs 

Commercial Paper*  $1,497,968  $1,497,968  $-       $-    
Government Municipal Bonds*  640,920  640,920  -  - 
Government Municipal Bonds**  123,821  123,821  -  - 
Certificates of Deposit*  245,000  245,000  -  - 
Mutual Funds*  1,180,639  1,180,639  -  - 

Total  $3,688,348  $3,688,348  $-  $- 
         

* Investment matures within one year 
** Investment matures in 1-5 years 

*** Investment matures in 6-10 years 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the 
Township’s investments. The Township does not have a formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
Michigan statutes (Act 196, PA 1997) authorize the Township to invest in bonds, other direct 
obligations and repurchase agreements of the United States, certificates of deposits, savings 
accounts, deposit accounts or receipts of a bank which is a member of the FDIC and 
authorized to operate in this state, commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the 
two highest classifications established by not less than two standard rating services and 
matures within 270 days from date of purchase, bankers’ acceptances of the United States 
banks, obligations of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions, external investment 
pools, and certain mutual funds. Michigan law prohibits security in the form of collateral, surety 
bond, or another form for the deposit of public money. 
 
The Township has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. The 
Township’s investments are in accordance with statutory authority. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Township places no limit on the amount the Township may invest in any one issuer.  
There were no investments subject to concentration of credit risk disclosure. 
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NOTE C – RESTRICTED CASH/NET POSITION: 
 
The Sewer System Fund has restricted net position totaling $57,340 which represents the 
balance available to pay down debt in accordance with the following bond covenants: 
 
   March 31, 2021 
   Required 

Balance 
 Actual 

Balance 
I. Construction Accounts:     
 These accounts are used to receive loan/grant proceeds and 

pay construction costs. 
a.  2015 Revenue Bond 

 

$-  $- 
      
II. Bond Payment Accounts:     
 These accounts are required to be funded per bond issues.  

The fund shall be used solely for payment of principal and 
interest on the bonds as to which would otherwise be in default. 

a. 2015 Revenue Bond 

  
 
 

4,790  

 
 
 

2,284 
 
III. Bond Reserve Accounts:     
 These accounts are required to be funded per bond issues.  

The fund shall be used solely for payment of principal and 
interest on the bonds as to which would otherwise be in default. 

a. 2015 Revenue Bond 

 

$5,600  $3,224 
      
IV. Capital Improvement Accounts:     
 These accounts are required to be funded per bond.  These 

funds are to be used for repairs, replacement, or improvements 
to the sewer system.  If the amounts in the bond reserve 
accounts are not sufficient to pay on the bonds when due, 
these monies may be transferred for that purpose. 

a. 2015 Revenue Bond 

 

46,950  39,854 
      
V. Operations and Maintenance Accounts:     
 These accounts are required to be funded per bond issues.  

The fund shall be used solely for the operation and 
maintenance of the System. 

a. 2015 Revenue Bond 

 

-  - 
  

Total 
 

$57,340  $45,362 
 
NOTE D – RECEIVABLES: 
 
A summary of accounts receivable for the Primary Government at March 31, 2021 is as follows: 
 

  
Governmental 

Activities  

Business-
Type 

Activities 

 Total 
Primary  

Government 
Accounts receivable $-  $-  $- 
Taxes receivable 43,000  7,268  50,268 
Due from other governmental units 8,083  -  8,083 
Other receivables 27,145  -  27,145 
Utilities receivable 750  8,846  9,596 

Total $78,978  $16,114  $95,092 
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NOTE E – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS IN/OUT: 
 
Township reports interfund balances between many of its funds. The total of all balances agrees 
with the sum of interfund balances presented in the statements of net position/balance sheet for 
governmental funds. Interfund transactions resulting in interfund receivables and payables are 
as follows: 
 

    
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 

D
U

E 
TO

 
O

TH
ER

 F
U

N
D

S 

 
General 

Fund 
Road  
Fund 

Fire 
Fund 

Building 
Fund 

Garbage 
Fund 

Park 
Fund 

Total Due 
From Other 

Funds 
General Fund $- $149,596 $312,868 $138,013 $95,000 $38,000 $733,477 
Road Fund 300 - - - - - 300 
Fire Fund 8,183   - - - 8,183 
Building Fund 3,621 - - - - - 3,621 
Garbage Fund 1,004 - - - - - 1,004 
Park Fund 2,017 - - - - - 2,017 
Sewer Fund 762 - - - - - 762 

Total Due To 
Other Funds $15,887 $149,596 $312,868 $138,013 $95,000 $38,000 $749,364 

 
All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) Interfund goods and services 
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 
 

  
TRANSFERS IN FROM OTHER FUNDS 

TR
AN

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T 

TO
 

O
TH

ER
 F

U
N

D
S 

 
General 

Fund 
Road 
Fund 

Fire  
Fund 

Building 
Fund 

Garbage 
Fund 

Park  
Fund 

Total 
Transfers 

In 
General Fund $- $- $- $- $- $- $- 
Road Fund - - - - - - - 
Building Fund - - - - - - - 
Garbage Fund - - - - - - - 
Sewer Fund - - - - - - - 

Total 
Transfers Out $- $- $- $- $- $- $- 

 
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect 
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) moves receipts 
restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt 
service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund 
to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations.  
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NOTE F – CAPITAL ASSETS: 
 

A summary of the capital assets of the Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities is 
as follows: 

  Balance at 
April 1, 
2020  

 
Additions  

 
Disposals  

Balance at 
March 31,  

2021 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:         

Capital asset not being depreciated:         
Land  $647,500   $-  $-  $647,500  
Construction in progress  -  -  -  - 

         
Capital asset being depreciated:         
     Land improvements  298,680  8,900  -  307,580 

Buildings and improvements  2,010,306   -  -  2,010,306  
Equipment    182,050  -  -  182,050 
Vehicles  953,121   -   -  953,121  

Total Capital Assets  4,091,657   8,900   -  4,100,557  
         

Less accumulated depreciation:         
        Land improvements  (39,824)  (20,505)  -  (60,329) 

    Building and improvements  (1,251,061)  (34,325)  -  (1,285,386) 
    Equipment  (172,415)  (5,277)  -  (177,692) 

Vehicles   (696,090)  (33,367)  -   (729,457) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  (2,159,390)  (93,474)  -   (2,252,864) 

         
Capital Assets, Net  $1,932,267   ($84,574)  $-   $1,847,693  

         
 

  Balance at 
April 1, 
2020  

 
Additions  

 
Disposals  

Balance at 
March 31,  

2021 
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:         

Capital asset not being depreciated:         
Land  $58,724   $-  $-  $58,724  

     Construction in progress  -  -  -  - 
Capital asset being depreciated:         
     Sewer system  1,796,548  122,330  -  1,918,878 
     Buildings and improvements  730,117  -  -  730,117 

Equipment  50,134  -  -  50,134 
Total Capital Assets  2,635,523   122,330  -   2,757,853  

         
Less accumulated depreciation:         

Sewer system  (1,012,819)  (38,378)  -  (1,051,197) 
Buildings and improvements  (51,107)  (14,602)  -  (65,709) 
Equipment  (3,444)  (2,507)  -  (5,951) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation  (1,067,370)  (55,487)  -  (1,122,857) 
         

Capital Assets, Net  $1,568,153   $66,843  $-  $1,634,996  
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NOTE F – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued): 
 
Depreciation expenses for the governmental activities were charged to the following functions 
and activities of the primary government: 
 

Governmental Activities:   
   Unallocated Depreciation $93,474 

Total Depreciation Expense – Governmental Activities $93,474 
 
Depreciation expense for the business-type activities was charged to the following functions and 
activities of the primary government: 
 

Business-Type Activities:  
   Sewer Fund $55,487 
Total Depreciation Expense – Business-Type Activities  $55,487 

 
NOTE G – LONG-TERM DEBT: 
 
The government issues bonds and loans to provide for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and 
credit   of   the   government.  Township   contractual   agreements   and   installment   purchase 
agreements are also general obligations of the government. Special assessment bonds provide 
for capital improvements that benefit specific properties, and will be repaid from amounts levied 
against those properties benefited from the construction. In the event that a deficiency exists 
because of unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time of debt service payments are 
due, the government is obligated to provide resources to cover the deficiency until other 
resources (such as tax sale proceeds or a re-assessment of the district) are received. Revenue 
bonds involve a pledge of specific income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to 
pay debt service. 
 
A summary of long-term liability activity for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows: 
 

 April 1,  
2020  Additions  Disposals  

March 31, 
2021  

Due Within 
One Year 

Governmental Activities:          
  Road Bond $635,000  $-  ($60,000)  $575,000  $60,000 

Total Governmental Activities 635,000  -  (60,000)  575,000  60,000 
          
Business-Type Activities:          
  Sewer:          
    Revenue Bond, Series 2015 182,000  -  (3,000)  179,000  3,000 

Total Business-Type Activities 182,000             -    (3,000)  179,000  3,000 
TOTAL PRIMARY 

GOVERNMENT  $817,000  $-  ($63,000)  $754,000  
 

$63,000 
 
Individual bond and contractual obligation activity can be summarized as follows: 
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NOTE G – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 
 
 

ROAD BOND 
March 31, 2021 

 November 1  May 1   
 Principal  Interest  Interest  Total 

2022 $60,000   $10,210   $10,210   $80,420  
2023 65,000  9,340  9,340  83,680 
2024 65,000  8,333  8,333  81,666 
2025 70,000  7,260  7,260         84,520  
2026 75,000  6,035  6,035         87,070  

2027-2029 240,000  9,626  9,626         259,252  
Total $575,000   $50,804   $50,804   $676,608 

         
The Bond was originally issued for $945,000 on December 19, 2013. Bond payments are due 
semi-annually, May 1 (interest) and November 1 (principal and interest), with an interest rate 
varying 1.200% to 4.000%. 
 
 

SEWER REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2015 
March 31, 2021 

 October 1  April 1   
 Principal  Interest  Interest  Total 

2022 $3,000  $1,790  $1,790  $6,580 
2023 3,000  1,760  1,760         6,520  
2024 3,000  1,730  1,730         6,460  
2025 3,000  1,700  1,700         6,400  
2026 4,000  1,670  1,670         7,340  

2027-2031 20,000  7,750  7,750        35,500  
2032-2036 21,000  6,750  6,750        34,500  
2037-2041 25,000  5,600  5,600  36,200 
2042-2046 28,000  4,320  4,320  36,640 
2047-2051 31,000  2,850  2,850  36,700 
2052-2056 38,000  1,200  1,200         40,400 

Total $179,000   $37,120   $37,120   $253,240 
         

The Bond was originally issued for $194,000 on October 22, 2015.  Bond Payments are due 
Semi-annually, April 1 (interest) and October 1 (principal plus interest), with an interest rate of 
2.000%. 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the non-current liabilities are as follows: 
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NOTE G – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 
 

Year  
Governmental 

Activities  
Business-Type 

Activities  
Total Primary 
Government 

2022  $80,420   $6,580  $87,000 
2023  83,680         6,520   90,200 
2024  81,666         6,460   88,126 
2025         84,520          6,400   90,920 
2026         87,070          7,340   94,410 

2027-2031  259,252        35,500   294,752 
2032-2036  -        34,500         34,500  
2037-2041  -  36,200  36,200 
2042-2046  -  36,640  36,640 
2047-2051  -  36,700  36,700 
2052-2056         -          40,400         40,400 

Total  $676,608  $253,240  $929,848 
 
NOTE H – FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: 
 
Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

 
Non-spendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

 
Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees is the highest level of 
decision-making authority for the Township. Commitments may be established, modified, 
or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 
Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the Township’s 
adopted policy, only the Manager or the Board of Trustees may assign amounts for 
specific purposes.  
 
Unassigned — all other spendable amounts. 
 

As of March 31, 2021, fund balances are composed of the following: 
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NOTE H – FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued): 
 

 
General 

Fund 

Major Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

Non-major 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds Total 

Non-spendable:     

   Advance to other funds $245,549 $- $- $245,549 

Restricted:     

   Road Fund - 817,935 - 817,935 

   Fire Fund - 1,674,190 - 1,674,190 

   Building Fund - 796,557 - 796,557 

   Garbage Fund - 1,094,507 - 1,094,507 

   Park Fund - - 245,377 245,377 

   DDA Fund - - 46,420 46,420 

Committed:     

   None - - - - 

Assigned:     

   July 4th Committee 9,784 - - 9,784 

   Museum 15,296 - - 15,296 

   Cemetery 3,403 - - 3,403 

   Garbage 11,893 - - 11,893 

   Library 9,696 - - 9,696 

   Kids Recreation 376 - - 376 

   National Night Out 1,255 - - 1,255 

Unassigned 1,698,345 - - 1,698,345 

Total $1,995,597 $4,383,189 $291,797 $6,670,583 
 
The Board of Trustees establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by 
passage of a resolution.  This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget.  
A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or 
commitment of the fund. Assigned fund balance is established by the Board of Trustees through 
amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed 
assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes). 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balance  is  available, the Township  considers  restricted  funds  to  have  been  spent  first.  
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances 
are available, the Township considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, 
then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of Trustees 
has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 
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NOTE I – INTERFUND ADVANCE: 
 

On July 5, 2018 the Board of Trustees approved an interfund advance from the General Fund to 
the Sewer Fund in the amount of $278,000 for the purpose of financing a higher interest rate 
revenue bond.  Principal and interest payments are due semi-annually in April and October in 
the amount of $10,772. The advance has an interest rate of 2.00% and is due on October 1, 
2033. The amount of the advance outstanding as of March 31, 2021 was $245,549. 
 
NOTE J – PROPERTY TAXES: 
 
The Township property tax is levied on each December 1st on the taxable valuation of property 
(as defined by State statutes) located in the Township as of the preceding December 31st. 
 
Although the Township 2020 ad valorem tax is levied and collectible on December 1, 2020, it is 
the Township’s policy to recognize revenue from the current tax levy in the current year when 
the proceeds of this levy are budgeted and made “available” for the financing of operations.  
“Available” means collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period (60) days. 
 
The 2021 taxable valuation of the Township totaled $41,613,496 on which ad valorem taxes 
levied consisted of 6.6550 mills for the Township operation purposes, 2.4186 mills for fire and 
emergency management service operations, 1.4276 mills for the community building, and 
1.4316 for road operations. These amounts are recognized in the General Fund, Fire Fund, 
Building Fund, and Road Fund financial statements as revenue. 
 
NOTE K – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 
 
Risk Management – The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters.  The Township has obtained commercial insurance to handle its risk of loss. 
  
NOTE L – JOINT VENTURE: 
 
In June 1988, Township joined with 19 other municipalities to create the Marquette County Solid 
Waste Management Authority ("Authority").  The Authority was created pursuant to Act 233 of 
1955 to plan for, acquire, construct, finance, operate, maintain, repair and dispose of, whether 
by sale, lease, or otherwise, an Act 641 landfill, including all improvements, appurtenances, 
easements, accessory facilities and structures, equipment, and other property part of or 
incidental to the landfill sufficient to satisfy the requirements of, and function as a solid waste 
disposal area under Act 641 and to establish and administer procedures providing for the 
separation, recycling, recovery, conversion of solid waste to energy and for the disposition of 
such energy output and disposal at the site of Non-toxic Type II and Type III Solid Waste, to 
fund all of the above activities, to charge and collect fees in connection with the operation of the  
landfill  and  to provide for the reimbursement with receipt of bond proceeds to the City of 
Marquette and Sands Township of their respective costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with the establishment and administration of the Solid Waste Authority and the System Facility. 
 
The Authority is governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of one (1) member (who is the 
Chairperson of the board of Trustees) designated by the Sands Township Supervisor on behalf 
of the Sands Township, two (2) members designated by the Marquette City Commission; three 
(3) members designated by the Marquette County Board of Commissioners, and one resident of 
the City of Marquette appointed by the other 6 Authority Board members.  All decisions of the 
Board are made by majority vote, consisting of at least four of its members. 
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NOTE L – JOINT VENTURE (Continued): 
 
The Township's share of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and net position is approximately 1 percent. Summary financial information as of and 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows: 
 

Total Assets $18,460,076 
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 148,260 
Total Liabilities 8,294,563 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 131,727 
Total Net Position 10,182,046 
Total Operating Revenues 3,803,185 
Total Operating Expenses (3,854,521) 
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 227,972 
Net Income (Loss) 176,636 

 
NOTE M – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN: 
 
The Township offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with the 
Internal Revenue Code, Section 457.  The Plans are available to the five members of the Board 
of Trustees.  The Plans permit them to defer a portion of their current earnings until the 
employee’s termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable future. 
 
Due to changes in the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan’s assets are considered to be property 
of the Plan’s participants and are no longer subject to the Township’s general creditors. 
Therefore, the Plan is no longer presented in these statements. 
 
The Plan’s participants have the right to designate how the funds will be invested. Accordingly, 
the Township has no liability for losses under the Plan.  The Plan’s assets are held in trust for 
the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and their beneficiaries. 
 
The Township’s Plan is administered by Gleaners and ING, and as Plan Administrators, agree 
to hold harmless and indemnify the Board, it’s appointed and elected officers and participating 
employees from any loss resulting from Gleaners or ING or their agents’ failure to perform their 
duties and services pursuant to the Gleaners or ING program. 
 
NOTE N – SINGLE AUDIT: 
 
During the 2021 fiscal year, the Township did not expend more than $750,000 in federal dollars; 
therefore the Township is not required to have a Single Audit in order to comply with the Uniform 
Guidance.  
 
NOTE O – TAX ABATEMENTS: 
 
For financial reporting purposes, GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, defines 
a tax abatement as resulting from an agreement between a government and an individual or 
entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity 
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic development or 
otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. The Statement requires disclosure of tax 
abatement information about a reporting government’s own tax abatement agreements and 
about tax abatement agreements entered into by other governments that reduce the reporting 
government’s tax revenues.  
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NOTE O – TAX ABATEMENTS (Continued): 
 
The Township receives reduced property tax revenues as a result of Industrial Facilities Tax 
(IFT) exemptions, Brownfield exemptions, Neighborhood Enterprise Zone (NEZ) exemptions, 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) exemptions, and Eligible Manufacturing Personal 
Property (EMPP) exemptions granted by other governmental agencies within the Township in 
accordance with State laws. These tax exemptions are intended to promote economic 
development and/or growth within the issuing government’s jurisdiction.  
 
For purposes of disclosure under GASB 77, the Township discloses tax abatements by issuing 
government and type greater than $5,000 in the aggregate. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2021, there were no significant tax abatements made by the Township or any other 
governmental unit within the Township. 
 
NOTE P – NEW GASB STANDARDS: 
 
Management of the Township has reviewed the following pronouncements released by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) that are effective in the current fiscal year 
for applicability. Pronouncements deemed applicable to the Township by management are 
described below in Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements; 
pronouncements not applicable are described in Other Recently Issued Accounting 
Pronouncements. 
 
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements  
 
In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. GASB 84 establishes 
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The Statement 
identifies four types of fiduciary funds that should be reported, as applicable: (1) pension (and 
other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, 
and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not 
held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria. It also provides for 
recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that 
compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. This statement was originally effective 
for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. However, under GASB 95, the effective date 
was postponed by one year, to periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Township does 
have activities that meet the criteria for GASB 84; therefore, GASB 84 is applicable to the 
Township. 
 
Other Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. 
GASB 83 addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations 
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible 
capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement 
activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance 
in this Statement. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of 
recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. Under the 
Statement recognition occurs when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. It 
requires the measurement of an ARO to be based on the best estimate of the current value of 
outlays expected to be incurred. If an ARO (or portions thereof) has been incurred by a 
government but is not yet recognized because it is not reasonably estimable, the government is 
required to disclose that fact and the reasons therefor. This Statement also requires disclosure 
of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and assumptions used  
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NOTE P – NEW GASB STANDARDS (Continued): 
 
for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated 
tangible capital assets. It requires similar disclosures for a government’s minority shares of 
AROs. This statement was originally effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 
However, under GASB 95, the effective date was postponed by one year, to period beginning 
after June 15, 2019. The Township does not have any AROs that meet the criteria for GASB 83; 
therefore, GASB 83 is not applicable to the Township.  
 
In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, 
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. GASB 88 requires that additional essential 
information related to debt be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, including 
unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt, and term specified in debt 
agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, 
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective 
acceleration clauses. Debt, for purposes of disclosure in the notes to the financial statements,  
is defined under this Statement as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash 
(or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount 
that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. This Statement also requires 
that existing and additional information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placement 
of debt separately from other debt. This statement was originally effective for periods beginning 
after June 15, 2018. However, under GASB 95, the effective date was postponed by one year, 
to periods beginning after June 15, 2019. The Township has no debt that meets the criteria for 
GASB 88; therefore, GASB 88 is not applicable to the Township.  
 
In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interest – An Amendment 
of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. GASB 90 improves the consistency and comparability 
of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and 
improves the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. This 
statement defines when a majority equity interest should be measured using the equity method 
or measured at fair value. It further establishes when a governmental unit is required report a 
legally separate organization as a component unit due to ownership of a majority interest in the 
legally separate organization. This Statement requires that a component unit in which a 
government has a 100 percent equity interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the 
government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. This Statement was 
originally effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. However, under GASB 95, 
the effective date was postponed by one year, to periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
The Township does not have equity interests that meet the criteria for GASB 90; therefore, 
GASB 90 is not applicable to the Township. 
 
NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS: 
 
The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) have 
been released recently and may be applicable to the Township in the near future. We 
encourage management to review the following information and determine which standard(s) 
may be applicable to the Township.  
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NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued): 
 
GASB 87: Leases 
Originally effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019; postponed by GASB 95 
to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 (Township’s fiscal year 2023) 

This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring 
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources on the 
payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on 
the foundational principle that leases are financing of the right to use an underlying asset.   A 
lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a 
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby 
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  
 
GASB 89: Accounting for Interest Cost incurred before the end of a Construction Period 
Originally effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019; postponed by GASB 95 
to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020 (Township’s fiscal year 2022) 

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of 
a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that was previously accounted for 
in accordance with the requirements of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement.  This Statement requires that 
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in 
the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statement prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus.  
 
GASB 91: Conduit Debt Obligations 
Originally effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020; postponed by GASB 95 
to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 (Township’s fiscal year 2023) 

The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit 
debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments 
extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related 
note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of 
a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; 
establishing standards for account and financial reporting of additional commitments and 
voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt 
obligations; and improving required note disclosures.  
 
A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument having all of the following 
characteristics: 

• There are at least three parties involved: (1) an issuer, (2) a third-party obligor, and 
(3) a debt holder or a debt trustee. 

• The issuer and the third-party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity. 
• The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross-collateralized with 

other debt of the issuer. 
• The third-party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from 

the debt issuance. 
• The third-party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all 

amounts associated with the debt obligation (debt service payments). 
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NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued): 
 
All conduit debt obligations involve the issuer making a limited commitment. Some issuers 
extend additional commitments or voluntary commitments to support debt service in the event 
the third party is, or will be, unable to do so. 
 
An issuer should not recognize a conduit debt obligation as a liability. However, an issuer 
should recognize a liability associated with an additional commitment or a voluntary commitment 
to support debt service if certain recognition criteria are met. As long as a conduit debt 
obligation is outstanding, an issuer that has made an additional commitment should evaluate at 
least annually whether those criteria are met. An issuer that has made only a limited 
commitment should evaluate whether those criteria are met when an event occurs that causes 
the issuer to reevaluate its willingness or ability to support the obligor’s debt service through a 
voluntary commitment. 
 
This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are 
associated with conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed 
or acquired with the proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the 
course of their activities. Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide 
with debt service payments. During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital 
assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the obligors at the end of the arrangements. 
 
Issuers should not report those arrangements as leases, nor should they recognize a liability for 
the related conduit debt obligations or a receivable for the payments related to those 
arrangements. In addition, the following provisions apply: 
 

• If the title passes to the third-party obligor at the end of the arrangement, an issuer 
should not recognize a capital asset. 

• If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of 
the entire capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer should not recognize a capital 
asset until the arrangement ends. 

• If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of 
only portions of the capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer, at the inception of 
the arrangement, should recognize the entire capital asset and a deferred inflow of 
resources. The deferred inflow of resources should be reduced, and an inflow 
recognized, in a systematic and rational manner over the term of the arrangement. 

 
This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt 
obligations, organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal 
amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. 
Issuers that recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations 
also should disclose information about the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed 
during the reporting period.  
 
GASB 92: Omnibus 2020 
Originally effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2020; postponed by GASB 95 to 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 (Township’s fiscal year 2023) 

This Statement enhances comparability of accounting and financial reporting and improves the 
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified 
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses 
a variety of topics and includes specific provisions about the following:  
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NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued): 
 

• The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 
2019-3, Leases, for interim financial reports 

• Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer 
and a component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other 
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan 

• The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, 
and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as 
amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets accumulated for 
postemployment benefits 

• The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to 
postemployment benefit arrangements 

• Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations 
(AROs) in a government acquisition 

• Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers 
or excess insurers 

• Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in 
authoritative literature 

• Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.  
 
GASB 93: Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 
Originally effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2019; postponed by GASB 95 to 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2020 (Township’s fiscal year 2022) 

Some governments have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received 
depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR) – notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate 
(LIBOR). As a result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its 
current form at the end of 2021, prompting governments to amend or replace financial 
instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates, by either changing 
the reference rate or adding or changing the fallback provisions related to the reference rate.   
Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, as amended, 
requires a government to terminate hedge accounting when it renegotiates or amends a critical 
term of a hedging derivative instrument, such as the reference rate of a hedging derivative 
instrument’s variable payment. In addition, in accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, as 
amended, replacement of the rate on which variable payments depend in a lease contract would 
require a government to apply the provisions for lease modifications, including remeasurement 
of the lease liability or lease receivable.  
The objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting 
implications that result from the replacement of an IBOR. This statement achieves that objective 
by:  

• Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge 
accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of 
the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment 

• Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedge item is 
amended to replace the reference rate 

• Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, 
by itself, affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedge expected 
transactions is probable 
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NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued): 
 
• Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative 

evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap 
• Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds 

Rate as appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the 
effectiveness of an interest rate swap 

• Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended. 
Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for 
certain lease contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which 
variable payments depend.  
 
GASB 94: Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements 
Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022 (Township’s fiscal year 2024) 

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by establishing the 
definitions of public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs) and availability 
payment arrangements (APAs) and providing uniform guidance on accounting and financial 
reporting for transactions that meet those definitions. That uniform guidance will provide more 
relevant and reliable information for financial statement users and create greater consistency in 
practice. This Statement will enhance the decision usefulness of a government’s financial 
statements by requiring governments to report assets and liabilities related to PPPs consistently 
and disclose important information about PPP transactions. The required disclosures will allow 
users to understand the scale and important aspects of a government’s PPPs and evaluate a 
government’s future obligations and assets resulting from PPPs. 
 
Under this Statement, a PPP is defined as an arrangement in which a government (the 
transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide 
public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial assets, such as 
infrastructure or other capital assts (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. Under this Statement a PPP meets the definition of a 
service concession arrangement (SCA) if: (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees 
from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which 
services the operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the 
services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is 
entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end 
of the arrangement. 
 
As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government compensates 
an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or 
operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. 
 
GASB 95: Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance 
Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2018 until below GASBs implemented 
(beginning with the Township’s fiscal year 2020) 

The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other 
stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing 
the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first 
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2018, and later. 
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NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued): 
 
The effective dates of certain provisions contained in the following pronouncements are 
postponed by one year: 

• Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations  
• Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities 
• Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and 

Direct Placements 
• Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 

Construction Period 
• Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests 
• Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 
• Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 
• Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 

 
The effective dates of the following pronouncements are postponed by 18 months: 

• Statement No. 87, Leases 
 
Earlier application of the provisions addressed in this Statement is encouraged and is permitted 
to the extent specified in each pronouncement as originally issued. 
 
GASB 96: Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 
Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022 (Township’s fiscal year 2024) 

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by establishing a definition 
for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end 
users (governments) and providing uniform guidance for accounting and financial reporting for 
transactions that meet that definition. This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a 
SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding 
subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription 
payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures 
regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the 
standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. 
 
A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (a 
SBITA vendor’s) information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with tangible 
capital assets (the underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. That definition and uniform guidance will result in 
greater consistency in practice. Establishing the capitalization criteria for implementation costs 
also will reduce diversity and improve comparability in financial reporting by governments. This 
Statement also will enhance the relevance and reliability of a government’s financial statements 
by requiring a government to report a subscription asset and subscription liability for a SBITA 
and to disclose essential information about the arrangement. The disclosures will allow users to 
understand the scale and important aspects of a government’s SBITA activities and evaluate a 
government’s obligations and assets resulting from SBITAs. 
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NOTE Q - UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued): 
 
GASB 97: Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – An Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 
Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 (Township’s fiscal year 2023) 

The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability 
related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential 
component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the 
duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the 
reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other 
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or 
OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund 
financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the 
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred 
compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for 
benefits provided through those plans. 
 
This Statement requires that for purposes of determining whether a primary government is 
financially accountable for a potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that 
is a defined contribution pension plan, a defined contribution OPEB plan, or an other employee 
benefit plan (for example, certain Section 457 plans), the absence of a governing board should 
be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary 
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform. 
 
This Statement also requires that the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 
84, Fiduciary Activities, be applicable to only defined benefit pension plans and defined 
benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of 
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, or paragraph 3 of Statement No. 74, 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, respectively. 
 
This Statement (1) requires that a Section 457 plan be classified as either a pension plan or an 
other employee benefit plan depending on whether the plan meets the definition of a pension 
plan and (2) clarifies that Statement 84, as amended, should be applied to all arrangements 
organized under IRC Section 457 to determine whether those arrangements should be reported 
as fiduciary activities. 
 
NOTE R – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:  
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus 
(COVID-19) a pandemic. The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has resulted in the 
temporary reduction of operating hours for many local units of government as well as temporary 
local government closures that were mandated. As the country is in the midst of recovery from 
the pandemic there have been promises of stimulus monies to be distributed to individuals, local 
and state governments, as well as increased funding to federal agencies.  
 
At the current time, we are unable to quantify the potential effects of the various recovery plans 
from the pandemic may have on our future financial statements. 
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes 415,039$        415,039$        756,657$        341,618$        
Licenses and Permits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Federal Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
State Sources 59,301            59,301            191,561          132,260          
Local Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
Charges for Services 80,650            80,650            43,168            (37,482)           
Fines and Forfeits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Interest and Rents 159,100          159,100          18,283            (140,817)         

Other Revenue 37,720            37,720            24,569            (13,151)           

TOTAL REVENUES 751,810          751,810          1,034,238       282,428          

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative 229,266          229,266          152,747          76,519            
General Government 111,771          111,771          73,877            37,894            
Public Safety -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public Works 61,287            61,287            57,091            4,196              
Health and Welfare -                      -                      -                      -                      
Community and Economic Development 19,200            19,200            6,401              12,799            
Recreation and Culture 50,955            50,955            15,745            35,210            
Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      -                      

Debt Service -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 472,479          472,479          305,861          166,618          

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 279,331          279,331          728,377          449,046          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 145,000          145,000          -                      (145,000)         
Transfers (out) (142,909)         (142,909)         -                      142,909          

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
 SOURCES (USES) 2,091              2,091              -                      (2,091)             

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 281,422          281,422          728,377          446,955          

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,267,220       1,267,220       1,267,220       -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,548,642$     1,548,642$     1,995,597$     446,955$        
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

ROAD FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes 283,571$        283,571$        195,033$        (88,538)$         
Licenses and Permits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Federal Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
State Sources 34,007            34,007            3,376              (30,631)           
Local Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
Charges for Services -                      -                      -                      -                      
Fines and Forfeits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Interest and Rents 6,550              6,550              7,379              829                 

Other Revenue -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 324,128          324,128          205,788          (118,340)         

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative -                      -                      -                      -                      
General Government -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public Safety -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public Works 197,274          197,274          97,931            99,343            
Health and Welfare -                      -                      -                      -                      
Community and Economic Development -                      -                      -                      -                      
Recreation and Culture -                      -                      -                      -                      
Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      -                      

Debt Service -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 197,274          197,274          97,931            99,343            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 126,854          126,854          107,857          (18,997)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) (193,282)         (193,282)         -                      193,282          

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
 SOURCES (USES) (193,282)         (193,282)         -                      193,282          

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (66,428)           (66,428)           107,857          174,285          

Fund balance, beginning of year 710,078          710,078          710,078          -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 643,650$        643,650$        817,935$        174,285$        
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

FIRE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes 204,387$        204,387$        270,895$        66,508$          
Licenses and Permits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Federal Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
State Sources 30,000            30,000            -                      (30,000)           
Local Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
Charges for Services 12,000            12,000            19,888            7,888              
Fines and Forfeits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Interest and Rents 13,100            13,100            16,639            3,539              

Other Revenue -                      -                      867                 867                 

TOTAL REVENUES 259,487          259,487          308,289          48,802            

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative -                      -                      -                      -                      
General Government -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public Safety 98,210            98,210            42,754            55,456            
Public Works -                      -                      -                      -                      
Health and Welfare 77,299            77,299            22,560            54,739            
Community and Economic Development -                      -                      -                      -                      
Recreation and Culture -                      -                      -                      -                      
Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      -                      

Debt Service -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,509          175,509          65,314            110,195          

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 83,978            83,978            242,975          158,997          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) (98,487)           (98,487)           -                      98,487            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
 SOURCES (USES) (98,487)           (98,487)           -                      98,487            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (14,509)           (14,509)           242,975          257,484          

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,431,215       1,431,215       1,431,215       -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,416,706$     1,416,706$     1,674,190$     257,484$        
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

COMMUNITY BUILDING FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes 151,866$        151,866$        168,741$        16,875$          
Licenses and permits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Federal sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
State sources 20,000            20,000            -                      (20,000)           
Local sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
Charges for services -                      -                      -                      -                      
Fines and forfeits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Interest and rents 5,200              5,200              7,081              1,881              

Other revenues 1,000              1,000              3,059              2,059              

TOTAL REVENUES 178,066          178,066          178,881          815                 

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative -                      -                      -                      -                      
General services and administration 107,900          107,900          54,975            52,925            
Public safety -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public works -                      -                      -                      -                      
Health and welfare -                      -                      -                      -                      
Community and economic development -                      -                      -                      -                      
Recreation and culture -                      -                      -                      -                      
Capital outlay -                      -                      -                      -                      

Debt service -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 107,900          107,900          54,975            52,925            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 70,166            70,166            123,906          53,740            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) (70,166)           (70,166)           -                      70,166            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
 SOURCES (USES) (70,166)           (70,166)           -                      70,166            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                      -                      123,906          123,906          

Fund balance, beginning of year 672,651          672,651          672,651          -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 672,651$        672,651$        796,557$        123,906$        
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

GARBAGE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes 45,907$          45,907$          17,998$          (27,909)$         
Licenses and Permits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Federal Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
State Sources 27,000            27,000            -                      (27,000)           
Local Sources -                      -                      -                      -                      
Charges for Services 114,080          114,080          89,106            (24,974)           
Fines and Forfeits -                      -                      -                      -                      
Interest and Rents 12,750            12,750            13,493            743                 
Other Revenue 3,600              3,600              4,319              719                 

TOTAL REVENUES 203,337          203,337          124,916          (78,421)           

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative -                      -                      -                      -                      
General Government -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public Safety -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public Works 187,380          187,380          150,771          36,609            
Health and Welfare -                      -                      -                      -                      
Community and Economic Development -                      -                      -                      -                      
Recreation and Culture -                      -                      -                      -                      
Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      -                      
Debt Service -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 187,380          187,380          150,771          36,609            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 15,957            15,957            (25,855)           (41,812)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) (65,805)           (65,805)           -                      65,805            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
 SOURCES (USES) (65,805)           (65,805)           -                      65,805            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (49,848)           (49,848)           (25,855)           23,993            

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,120,362       1,120,362       1,120,362       -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,070,514$     1,070,514$     1,094,507$     23,993$          
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes:

Current levy 169,108$        212,702$        43,594$          
Delinquent taxes 6,500             7,853             1,353             
Severance tax 142,909          491,071          348,162          
Commercial forest reserve 63,000            13,887            (49,113)          
Swamp tax 13,357            13,258            (99)                 
Tax collection fees 20,165            17,886            (2,279)            

Total Property Taxes 415,039          756,657          341,618          

Federal Sources:
Grants -                     -                     -                     

Total Federal Sources -                     -                     -                     

State Sources:
Local community stabilization 35,301            152,584          117,283          
State revenue sharing 24,000            38,977            14,977            

Total State Sources 59,301            191,561          132,260          

Charges for Services:
Zoning 1,000             600                (400)               
Burial 1,000             700                (300)               
Cemetery - Spurr Township 8,000             -                     (8,000)            
Miscellaneous services 70,650            41,868            (28,782)          

Total Charges for Services 80,650            43,168            (37,482)          

Interest and Rents:
Interest 159,100          18,283            (140,817)        
Rents -                     -                     -                     

Total Interest and Rents 159,100          18,283            (140,817)        

Other Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue 37,720            24,569            (13,151)          

Total Other Revenues 37,720            24,569            (13,151)          

TOTAL REVENUES 751,810          1,034,238       282,428          

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative:

Township Board:
Personnel services 89,561$          77,727$          11,834$          
Supplies 2,500             3,034             (534)               
Other services and charges 137,205          71,986            65,219            

Total Township Board 229,266          152,747          76,519            

Total Legislative 229,266          152,747          76,519            

General Government
Supervisor:

Personnel services 8,208             8,139             69                  
Supplies -                     -                     -                     
Other services and charges 3,300             128                3,172             

Total Supervisor 11,508            8,267             3,241             

Elections:
Personnel services 3,200             3,173             27                  
Supplies 1,700             1,693             7                    
Other services and charges 1,305             210                1,095             

Total Elections 6,205             5,076             1,129             

Assessor:
Personnel services 10,000            6,875             3,125             
Supplies 2,200             2,307             (107)               
Other services and charges 1,400             1,275             125                

Total Assessor 13,600            10,457            3,143             

Clerk:
Personnel services 23,804            23,561            243                
Supplies -                     -                     -                     
Other services and charges 3,750             213                3,537             

Total Clerk 27,554            23,774            3,780             

Board of Review:
Personnel services 850                814                36                  
Supplies -                     -                     -                     
Other services and charges 1,100             824                276                

Total Board of Review 1,950             1,638             312                
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Treasurer:
Personnel services 14,004$          12,905$          1,099$            
Supplies 100                26                  74                  
Other services and charges 5,200             3,297             1,903             

Total Treasurer 19,304            16,228            3,076             

Township Hall and Grounds:
Personnel services -                     -                     -                     
Supplies 500                -                     500                
Other services and charges 500                -                     500                
Capital outlay -                     -                     -                     

Total Township Hall and Grounds 1,000             -                     1,000             

Cemetery:
Personnel services 10,500            7,016             3,484             
Supplies 2,250             413                1,837             
Other services and charges 17,900            1,008             16,892            

Total Cemetery 30,650            8,437             22,213            

Total General Government 111,771          73,877            37,894            

Public Works
Department of Public Works:

Personnel services 26,085            26,426            (341)               
Supplies 6,150             4,677             1,473             
Supplies 15,152            13,780            1,372             
Capital outlay 3,800             3,800             -                     

Total Department of Public Works 51,187            48,683            2,504             

Streetlights:
Personnel services -                     -                     -                     
Supplies -                     -                     -                     
Other services and charges 10,100            8,408             1,692             

Total Streetlights 10,100            8,408             1,692             

Total Public Works 61,287            57,091            4,196             
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Community and Economic Development
Zoning:

Personnel services 11,000$          4,564$            6,436$            
Supplies 150                95                  55                  
Other services and charges 8,050             1,742             6,308             

Total Zoning 19,200            6,401             12,799            

Total Community and Economic Development 19,200            6,401             12,799            

Recreation and Culture
Senior Center:

Personnel services -                     -                     -                     
Supplies -                     -                     -                     
Other services and charges 3,640             3,640             -                     

Total Senior Center 3,640             3,640             -                     

Library:
Personnel services 700                678                22                  
Supplies 300                11                  289                
Other services and charges 5,935             2,376             3,559             
Capital outlay 4,000             -                     4,000             

Total Library 10,935            3,065             7,870             

Museum:
Personnel services 1,750             1,245             505                
Supplies 3,000             426                2,574             
Other services and charges 14,975            6,471             8,504             

Total Museum 19,725            8,142             11,583            

Other:
Personnel services -                     -                     -                     
Supplies -                     -                     -                     
Other services and charges 16,655            898                15,757            

Total Other 16,655            898                15,757            

Total Recreation and Culture 50,955            15,745            35,210            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 472,479          305,861          166,618          

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 279,331          728,377          449,046          
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 145,000$        -$                   (145,000)$      
Transfers (out) (142,909)        -                     142,909          

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 2,091             -                     (2,091)            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 281,422          728,377          446,955          

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,267,220       1,267,220       -                     

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,548,642$     1,995,597$     446,955$        
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes:

Currently levy 101,165$        90,815$          (10,350)$         
Delinquent taxes 5,700              6,011              311                 
National forest -                      -                      -                      
Severance tax 169,116          95,220            (73,896)           
Commercial forest reserve 7,590              2,987              (4,603)             

Total Property Taxes 283,571          195,033          (88,538)           

State Sources:
Local community stabilization 30,407            -                      (30,407)           
Metro act 3,600              3,376              (224)                

Total State Sources 34,007            3,376              (30,631)           

Interest and Rents:
Interest 6,550              7,379              829                 
Rents -                      -                      -                      

Total Interest and Rents 6,550              7,379              829                 

Other Revenue:
Reimbursements -                      -                      -                      

Total Other Revenue -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 324,128          205,788          (118,340)         

EXPENDITURES:
Public Works:

Road:
Personnel services 710                 153                 557                 
Supplies 50                   -                      50                   
Other services and charges 36,388            2,354              34,034            
Capital outlay 78,116            13,414            64,702            
Debt service 82,010            82,010            -                      

Total Public Works 197,274          97,931            99,343            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 197,274          97,931            99,343            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 126,854          107,857          (18,997)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) (193,282)         -                      193,282          

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (193,282)         -                      193,282          

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (66,428)           107,857          174,285          

Fund balance, beginning of year 710,078          710,078          -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 643,650$        817,935$        174,285$        

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

ROAD FUND
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes:

Current levy 90,000$          98,920$          8,920$            
Delinquent taxes 5,000              6,060              1,060              
Severance tax 98,787            160,868          62,081            
Commercial forest reserve 10,600            5,047              (5,553)             

Total Property Taxes 204,387          270,895          66,508            

State Sources:
Local community stabilization 30,000            -                      (30,000)           

Total State Sources 30,000            -                      (30,000)           

Charges for services:
Fire services 2,000              9,128              7,128              
EMS services 10,000            10,760            760                 

Total Charges for Services 12,000            19,888            7,888              

Interest and Rents:
Interest 13,100            16,639            3,539              
Rents -                      -                      -                      

Total Interest and Rents 13,100            16,639            3,539              

Other Revenue:
Other revenue -                      867                 867                 

Total Other Revenue -                      867                 867                 

TOTAL REVENUES 259,487          308,289          48,802            

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety:

Fire Department:
Personnel services 12,600            12,045            555                 
Supplies 4,700              1,210              3,490              
Other services and charges 46,210            27,891            18,319            
Capital outlay 34,700            1,608              33,092            
Debt service -                      -                      -                      

Total Fire Department 98,210            42,754            55,456            

Total Public Safety 98,210            42,754            55,456            

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FIRE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -

SPECIAL REVENUE
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FIRE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -

SPECIAL REVENUE

Health and Welfare:
EMS Department:

Personnel services 24,000$          14,888$          9,112$            
Supplies 5,200              2,104              3,096              
Other services and charges 16,099            3,030              13,069            
Capital outlay 32,000            2,538              29,462            

Total EMS Department 77,299            22,560            54,739            

Total Health and Welfare 77,299            22,560            54,739            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,509          65,314            110,195          

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 83,978            242,975          158,997          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (out) (98,487)           -                      98,487            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (98,487)           -                      98,487            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (14,509)           242,975          257,484          

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,431,215       1,431,215       -                      

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,416,706$     1,674,190$     257,484$        

64



TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE

COMMUNITY BUILDING FUND

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Variance with

Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive

Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:

Property Taxes:

Currently levy 72,000$          66,504$          (5,496)$           

Delinquent taxes 4,100              4,304              204                 

Severance tax 70,166            94,954            24,788            

Commercial forest reserve 5,600              2,979              (2,621)            

Total Property Taxes 151,866          168,741          16,875            

State Sources:

Local community stabilization 20,000            -                     (20,000)           

Total State Sources 20,000            -                     (20,000)           

Interest and Rents:

Interest 5,050              7,031              1,981              

Rents 150                 50                   (100)               

Total Interest and Rents 5,200              7,081              1,881              

Other Revenue:

Reimbursements 1,000              3,059              2,059              

Total Other Revenue 1,000              3,059              2,059              

TOTAL REVENUES 178,066          178,881          815                 

EXPENDITURES:

General Government:

Building:

Personnel services 17,500            16,384            1,116              

Supplies 3,550              2,461              1,089              

Other services and charges 41,362            36,065            5,297              

Capital outlay 45,488            65                   45,423            

Debt service -                     -                     -                     

Total General Government 107,900          54,975            52,925            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 107,900          54,975            52,925            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 70,166            123,906          53,740            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                     -                     -                     

Transfers (out) (70,166)           -                     70,166            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (70,166)           -                     70,166            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                     123,906          123,906          

Fund balance, beginning of year 672,651          672,651          -                     

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 672,651$        796,557$        123,906$        

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes:

Currently levy 15,101$          10,413$          (4,688)$          
Delinquent taxes 5,100              5,333              233                 
Severance tax 15,806            -                     (15,806)          
Commercial forest reserve 9,900              2,252              (7,648)            

Total Property Taxes 45,907            17,998            (27,909)          

State Sources:
Local community stabilization 27,000            -                     (27,000)          

Total State Sources 27,000            -                     (27,000)          

Charges for Services
Republic Township -                     -                     -                     
Church camps -                     -                     -                     
Contractors 113,780          88,840            (24,940)          
Landfill tickets 300                 266                 (34)                 

Total Charges for Services 114,080          89,106            (24,974)          

Interest and Rents:
Interest 12,750            13,493            743                 
Rents -                     -                     -                     

Total Interest and Rents 12,750            13,493            743                 

Other Revenue:
Reimbursements 3,600              4,319              719                 

Total Other Revenue 3,600              4,319              719                 

TOTAL REVENUES 203,337          124,916          (78,421)          

EXPENDITURES:
Public Works:

Sanitation:
Personnel services 24,600            19,541            5,059              
Supplies 4,700              3,839              861                 
Other services and charges 156,080          125,391          30,689            
Capital outlay 2,000              2,000              -                     
Debt service -                     -                     -                     

Total Public Works 187,380          150,771          36,609            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 187,380          150,771          36,609            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 15,957            (25,855)          (41,812)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                     -                     -                     
Transfers (out) (65,805)          -                     65,805            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (65,805)          -                     65,805            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (49,848)          (25,855)          23,993            

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,120,362       1,120,362       -                     

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,070,514$     1,094,507$     23,993$          

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

GARBAGE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Variance with

Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive

Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:

Property Taxes:

Currently levy 19,000$          13,017$          (5,983)$           

Delinquent taxes 1,150              1,212              62                   

Severance tax 19,757            -                     (19,757)           

Commercial forest reserve 1,500              512                 (988)               

Total Property Taxes 41,407            14,741            (26,666)           

State Sources:

Local community stabilization 6,100              -                     (6,100)            

Total State Sources 6,100              -                     (6,100)            

Interest and Rents:

Interest (597)               2,497              3,094              

Rental 300                 -                     (300)               

Total Interest and Rents (297)               2,497              2,794              

Other Revenue:

Other revenue 550                 1,170              620                 

Total Other Revenue 550                 1,170              620                 

TOTAL REVENUES 47,760            18,408            (29,352)           

EXPENDITURES:

Recreation and Culture:

Park:

Personnel services 11,200            12,111            (911)               

Supplies 800                 407                 393                 

Other services and charges 53,525            6,639              46,886            

Capital outlay 10,000            13,699            (3,699)            

Total Park 75,525            32,856            42,669            

Total Recreation and Culture 75,525            32,856            42,669            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 75,525            32,856            42,669            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (27,765)           (14,448)           13,317            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 50,000            -                     (50,000)           

Transfers (out) (69,937)           -                     69,937            

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (19,937)           -                     19,937            

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (47,702)           (14,448)           33,254            

Fund balance, beginning of year 259,825          259,825          -                     

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 212,123$        245,377$        33,254$          

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE

PARK FUND
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes:

Currently levy 11,237$          16,921$          5,684$            
Delinquent taxes -                     -                     -                     
Commercial forest reserve -                     -                     -                     

Total Property Taxes 11,237            16,921            5,684             

Interest and Rents:
Interest 9                    8                    (1)                   
Rental -                     -                     -                     

Total Interest and Rents 9                    8                    (1)                   

Other Revenue:
Reimbursements 1,200             596                (604)               

Total Other Revenue 1,200             596                (604)               

TOTAL REVENUES 12,446            17,525            5,079             

EXPENDITURES:
Community Development:

Downtown Development Authority
Personnel services -                     -                     -                     
Supplies 50                  29                  21                  
Other services and charges 9,250             2,834             6,416             
Capital outlay 8,000             1,939             6,061             

Total Downtown Development Authority 17,300            4,802             12,498            

Total Recreation and Culture 17,300            4,802             12,498            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,300            4,802             12,498            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (4,854)            12,723            17,577            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                     -                     -                     
Transfers (out) -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                     -                     -                     

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,854)            12,723            17,577            

Fund balance, beginning of year 33,697            33,697            -                     

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 28,843$          46,420$          17,577$          

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

DDA FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 

AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees of the 
  Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
P.O. Box 220  
Michigamme, Michigan 49861 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan (the 
Township), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 29, 2021. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Township’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Township’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Township’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the 
accompanying Report to Management that we consider to be significant deficiencies listed as 
item 2021-001. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards.  
 
Township’s Response to Findings 
 
The Township’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Corrective Action Plan. The Township’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
September 29, 2021 
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Township of Michigamme, Michigan 

Report to Management 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2021 

 

 

 
To the Board of Trustees and Management of the  
Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
P.O. Box 220 
Michigamme, Michigan 49861 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Township of Michigamme, Michigan (the Township) as of and for the year ended March 31, 
2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
we considered the Township’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s  internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. We consider the following deficiencies in internal control to be significant 
deficiencies:  
 
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES  
 
2021-001 – ASSIST IN PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FOOTNOTES 
Condition/Criteria:  Statement on Auditing Standards #115 requires us to communicate in writing 
when a client requires assistance to prepare the financial statements and footnotes required in 
the annual audit report in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
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Cause of Condition:  The Township does not have adequate staffing to prepare all the 
information included in the annual financial statements. 
 
Effect:  We assisted management with the external financial reporting responsibility to ensure 
their financial statements are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Recommendation:  We do not recommend any changes to this situation at this time and 
communicate this as required by professional standards. 
 
Management Response – Corrective Action Plan:  

▪ Contact Person(s) Responsible for Correction: 
o Township Supervisor 

▪ Corrective Action Planned:  
o See separate Corrective Action Plan  

▪ Anticipated Date of Completion: 
o Not applicable. 

 
The Township’s written response to the significant deficiencies identified in our audit has not been 
subjected to the audit procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of 
Trustees, and others within the Township, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
September 29, 2021 
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Township of Michigamme, Michigan 

Communication with Those Charged with Governance 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2021 

 

 

September 29, 2021 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees of the 
   Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
P.O. Box 220 
Michigamme, Michigan 49861 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of 
Michigamme, Michigan (the Township) for the year ended March 31, 2021. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and Uniform 
Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 
We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 21, 2021. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Township are described in the notes to the financial 
statements. Newly adopted GASB standards are described in the notes to the financial 
statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the Township during the year for which 
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting 
the Township’s financial statements were: 

 
Management’s estimate of the accumulated depreciation and depreciation 
expense is based on historical cost and estimated useful life. We evaluated the key 
factors and assumptions used to develop the accumulated depreciation and 
depreciation expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
 

 



Board of Trustees of the 
Township of Michigamme, Michigan 
 

76 
 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of 
the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were 
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken 
as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated September 29, 2021. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Township’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Township’s auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in a separate letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist 
that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain 
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deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Report to Management that we 
consider to be significant deficiencies listed as item 2021-001. 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to required supplementary information (RSI), as listed in 
the table of contents, which supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures 
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on other supplemental information as listed in the table of contents, 
which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to 
the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of the 
Township and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
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Corrective Action Plan 
 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021 
 

 
 
September 29, 2021 
 
 
In response to the findings disclosed in the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 
2021: 
 
2021-001 ASSIST IN PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FOOTNOTES 
Corrective Action Plan: 
The Township has evaluated the possibility of preparing the financial statements and has concluded that 
currently the Township staff does not have sufficient time and/or personnel available to prepare the 
financial statements and footnotes. Management is involved with preparing the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis. Additionally, management reviews and approves the financial statements 
prepared by Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC prior to issuance and submission to the Michigan 
Department of Treasury. We do not foresee the need for any changes to this procedure at this time. 
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